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1o accordance with 8 directive of the General Monager, U.S.A.E.C., the i
Mansger, U.S.A.E.C., Office of Santa Fe Dirocted Operations, has the rospoos~ .
ibility of undertaking a complete study of tae functioning of the Los Alumoa i
Laboratory in all its ramifications, and of deriving frcm this study a conpre- '
hensive master plan for the housing of the Laboratory's activitles in permanent K
fireproof ptructures, these structures to be srectsd at sites so disposed that o
they will: a. permit successful escurity protoction; b. in general couse no
danger to persons or property cutside the Project boundaries ag & result of
their metivitien; o, will similarly csuss nc interference one to the othor be-
cause of these ssme activities; and d. will be cooveniently lovated with
respect to one another. The background againat which the study muct teke
place is that at present the major part of the comsunity activities pluo the
central technical establishmant are erowded together nlmost at the geographle
center ol the project land ares on Lop Alemos Mess, with some thirty other
technical srezs located to the east, southeast and southwest, some within a
half mile or less of the southorn Project boundury which runs along Stezte Route
#.. The entire northern hall of the project area plue the mountainoue reglons
in the Jems: Mountsins te tho west hap been loft unuped except for the five
water gowrces in the Jemez Range, the milituary firing ranges along the Geuje
water line in the upper regions of Darrances Cenyon about two wiles nortb of
the main technical ares, and the golf course and other rocrestional fecllities
piturted obout & mile ond o half north of the main technical aroa along the
upper reaches of Pueblo and Bayo Cenyons. This means, then, thot aprroximate-
ly two-thirds of the projoct area, about forty-Live or fifty pquare miles, has
besn relatively unteouched and should bo seriously considered for poopible use
as the planning work moves ahesd.

I. Proliminary Statemont

II. Delincatlon of the Problem,
A, Tochniesl Aree Locntions

Spacinlly, the activitics of the Laboratory must be oo situated that
reasonably convenient access is to be had among all the purts, and preferably
that the major areas of anctivity ean be quickly reeched from the community
areun, No bard and fact rulc cen be eet on this, but it would certainly seem
sdvantngeous to huve all of the tachnical areas witliin eacy driving diotence,
say [ifteen minutes at the most, of the mest rcmote rosidsntial arees, so that
in the event of an emorgency at an isolotoed laboratory or firing site respons-
ible technical poroonnel could be swmoned to the sceno in short order. Also,
if at all popsible, connecting roedwsys ehould be so arranged that it will not
be necesssry - ac it is at present - to transport explosives, active meteriasl
and classified cbjects through the residentinl and buciness areas cr closely
adjacent thereto.

B. Organizetional Rélations

Organizaticnally, the master plon will have to bo adjusted to bsst
accomodate Laboratory procurement and warchousing problems, maintenmnce facil-
itien, ntility supply uné distridbution, specisl shop services, adequate com-
minications, and both normel and contaminated wasto digposal., At the present
time the arrangements in almost a8}l of these fields ore sorewhot of a hodge
podge, and necossarily oo because cf the way in xhich the Project war organired
and oonatructed during the War years when it was assumed that all ingtallotions

UNCLASSIFIE




r

UNCLAS

wore temporary and would be removed at the end of the Var. Ancther phage of
the organizaticnal planning wued necessarily come from highur wuthority abd ,
involves decivions as to methods of community organizeotion and manngement, "
ircluding the question of duwl or single contract operation of all physicul <
facilities including the Laboratory, with its resultant effoct on the macner !
in which sotual work in done, by whom and under what suthority; and with .
further conmequent result in tho desirability of location for such items am
pover plento, meintcnanco shops, sowapge dispesal unito, end even contral ad-
ministration buildingn. In thipy £ield the Consuwltant Flanning CGroup must
clearly set up the overall reswlts which will fellow from varyiog organization-
al arrangoments so that higher suthority can mslio such docisions with a full
understanding of the consequencss which will f'sllow.

- Co Decision on TA-Ll Looation

A decigion on the future use of the TA-~l location was forced upon up
by the time scale which future planring and reconstructicn activitioy must
necessarily follow. The A. A. E., Consultent Flanning Group, bscouse of dif-
ficultics in the recrulting acd clesring of sdeguotely experionced p=rsonnel,
will not begin to function on any large scale before October or iovember of
thie yeur, If they are to do a thorough job, it is difficult to belleve thav
anything renembling a master plan or several slternetive mester plans can be
produced in less thsn aix to eight months, so it will be perhaps March, 1948
beforo these plans are rondy for dimcussion ard consoquent docision by higher
authority. Another year will elapse bofore the first gection of buildinge
for a new ares can he completed and occupied, so that it will be around larch,
1949 before we cun expect any use {rom the {irst siructures resulting from the
planning work. The decision having been mode that the central functions of
the Laboratory are to be transferred to South Mesa, we can now decide more
clearly vwhut should and should not be don® to the structures and fecilitles
in TA-1. Any lerge structures which have tv be built here phowld bo as light
and temporury ac possible, but since all of tlie prosent structares will to in
use for s perlod of two years and many of them up to 2ix yeurs, dopending on
how fast reconstructicn progresses, proper mairntenance end the provision of
cortain umenitiss st least will purely be necessary and will have to be con-
pidersd as pert of the price to be puld for the relocatlon of the central
Luboratory functions.

III. Status of the Project as a Whole
A. Boundary Conditionn

The originel land acquieitions in Sendovel County which reculted in
the Project as it 1s today were mode by tha real cotate section of the
A buquerque U, S. Engincers Office end the reculting bounderizs, roughly, are
the Santa Fe County Jine on the sapt, State Route f4, end the Bandelicr Nationnl
Mozument on tho south, Baco locution #1. on the west, and the Santa Clare Indien
Resorvation on the north, the whole comprising a little moro than seventy-five
square milos, ‘

B. Porsibilities for Expansion

It is conceivably posoible tc aequiroe some lund east of Sandoval County
Yo State Route #4., Ono balf is San Ildefonso Pushblo territory, ono quarter is
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held by the Park Sorvice ap part of the Bandolier Nationel Monument but there

are no widoly publicized Indian ruins in tho area and if national policy so dic- :
tated, this stretch of territory could probably be ceded to the A.E.C. by f
Copngross, and tho romaining quartor is privatoely owuod. For reampcos of security s
patrol, the exictence of the boundary along Route #4, rather than opne to two .
wniles dack up into the canyons and mesus where patrol 1s almost lmpessible, "
would cortainly be to our advantage. On the enuth the land botwsen the Project 3
boundary and Routo #4 is privately owned, and could no doubt bo precured. Ono

the wost, Bace locution #1 is privately owned anc it ip conceivable thet the

A.E.C. could ecquirs by outripgnt purchase a considorable percentege of this

property. At tho mement such acquisition has no greet value, but in the future

if' the Project coatinues its work in the developuent of atoric power plants, the

Vallo Grande would make an excellent locatlon for one and could be ccanected to

tho rwain body of the Project at no too grect expenso with & tuanel through the

Jemez Range, thoreby insuring nll-westher communicetion, Concelvably also,

should future necescity asriss for more stringent security measurcs regurding the
Project us o whole, s fenoced line in the lowland of the Valle Grande would cer-
tainly manke a more easily watched and protacted boundary to the west than does

the preyent western boundary, running ey it does through the highest purt of the
Jemez Range. To the neorth there is little likelihood that Congress could bo in-
duced to doprive the Sants Clara Indian Recorvatico of any of the land now as=-

signed to it, or that it could legally cdo so ghould it so dosiro.

C. Gancrsl Considerations

All of the sbove discussion is, of course, subject to the eventual dip-
pooition which the A.E.C. may care %o mako of the Laboratory as a whols, but
inasmuch ar a recent directive calls for the planning and reconstruction which
1s about to bo undertuken, it eoems reasonable to expoct that the Latoratory
w11l become a permanent institution unless the oxigencies of posslible future
gulded misslle wurfare should rocder it complstely impossible of defence and
hence cnuoo its abandonment and/or destrustion. This latter grim note should
eloo romind ue that in the overall planning schesme it may bo wise to completely
bury certuin key installations cuch as storage vaults for active materisl and
othor important bomb components, co that in the event of destruction of all or
most of tho communlty by guided mipsile attack, we would at least hove the ez-
sentinl parts romaining here of the weapona themselves, in such locatlon and
in such condition as to be salvaged for retaliation.

I7, Status of the Community
A. Poplation

. Esrly in 1943 when construction for this project pot under way, the
total population was only several hundred. During the VWer yesrs the civilian
populotion grew to approximately 2500 and another 3000 militery personncl were
stotioned hers. Since the end of the Viur military personnel hes declined to
about 1,000 men, Lut the clviiian populution growth hao more then exceeded the
losn of military personnel and the total population of the Project ig now in
the nelighborhood of 7,000. An additional 2,000 persons or more oommute duily
to and from tho Hill, the majority of thom being conctruction contractors!
enployeos, jenitors, monual laborers, houcehold servants and the like, although
a sizable number of wore resrzonbible persomnol also ccxnute. Frem the viewpolnt
of convenloncn of oporations and the crowth of community pride and intogrntionm,
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it 19 of course desirable that as many as possible of theso commuter: eventually
be housod here at Los Alamoc. Proliminery studies prepared for the lapepor heve
indioatod that o minimunm of 1200 now family bousing units above and beyond thore
presently controcted for will bo recuired in the pext tvo or three yeesre for )
this purpose. Thie obviously will only take care of housing units uhich are oot
aveilable in any form end will not take care of replacement of the meny hundred
temporary units in tho Mergen, Hanford, McKee and possibly the Leonurd Yood s
grosp., As on estimate, perbepy 1000 more units will he required for this pur- it
pono somo time in the next five to pevon years. .

B, Primsry Community Aveas

* The sire of the primary areas required for housing and tweic community
fuarstions will prolably turn out to be hetwoen twe and threo square miles. Ap-
proximatoly two-thirde of this can bo taken care of, if it be desired, here on
Los Alumos Mosa, including tho western housing development and adjecent Denvor
netal housing developaent. The remaining one-third could Le conveniently pit—
unted on North Mesa or in the hilly country north und west of the golf ecourse,
this again requiring considleration of possible locationr for new toctnicel arcas.

C. Secondary Comnunity Arcas

The pize of secondsry community arees is a little difficult to define
because ouch recreaticns ms hiking and horsebeck riding, os well as hunting end
fishing, will teke pecplo to all bub the most inaccecsitle spots which hove not
been rostricted for Leboratory upe. DBeceuss of the pature cf the terrain, it
1n ofton very difficult even to keop them out of such reziricted areas unlesp
they kpow thoir wey around very well end kmow where they arc at all times. For
more organized rocreation, basotall, polf, tennis and the like, tho ereas olready
allocated ure probably sufficient with perbeps some slight enlergement, anc the
whole quostion of allocating mew sccondary avoss to tho communily becemes prined-
pally ono of negative sssignment, in that all areas mot restricted for Laboratory
ugo, nor directly adjecont to the water sources, arc essentially medo available
for hikers, ete. This would corteinly cmount to o minimum of thirty or forty
square milcs and, of course, to all intents end purposos the Bandelior Nationel
Nonurent property to the south and esst should come under this came heading be-
cuupe it 19 likewise open to the public.

D. Soccurity Conoiderations

Basic to oll considorations affecting the status of the comnunity and
itp land allocations s the question of whether or not Los Alamos ip to te an
open coumunlty. Originally an Army post on u Government reservation, it otill
rolaine the closed charactoristics of an Army establishmont, although it is now
under civilian control. All perpons, whether inhabitants, commitors, or visit-
ors, must have permission to enter the Project and must cerry proper passes nnd
identification nt all times. There hep beon come telk thet this situatlon would
be oased and that ell percons hoving transportation could enter the Projoct at
will, leaving only the various technical aroas, public utility ecrvices, etc.,
restricted to perconnol pormitted to enter them. This would put the Project on
epeontinlly the sume statup os Boulder Dom and Boulder City, apd there is much
in parcllel. Bouldor Dam 1s & large and valuuble Covernment property which,
during the Tiar, was carafully guarded &s cn escential sector of the Var affort,
yot Boulder City, wheore tho people rospongible for the Dum reside and where the
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sdministrative offlces ere lccated, is an cpen town oo & public bighwoy where X
any tourist may stop and shop around to suit himself, Only when he visits the !
Dam are bic movements restricted. Applying this principle to Los Alawes, 1t K
would seom fuvesible to have the main Laborstory and the community definitely H
separated phymically, by soveral miles if possible, and in tris regard it ls e
unfortunate that the Main Technical Area and most of the community heve becomo )
looated so clonely adjacent to one another on Los Alnmos Mesa. The iceel cr- i
rungement would probably be to place the community two messs to the north or
even in Barrances Cenyon, at least a mile or two from tho nserert technicel in-
stallotion, with u new mccess roud built to the community locatien from the Rio
Crande Valley. Even yet it may not bo teo late to meconplish this becausc the
only large amcunt of permanent housing thus far constructed in the Vestern Area
is sufficiently off the main Los Alumos Mesa road to servo our purpeses, although
the ecrly completion of the comaunity conter vill make this transition a diffi-
cult ore to decide upon end it may bo that sufficient segregation can be obteined
simply by creating a telt of park lsnd - sey, 100 yords minimum width - around
the Main Technical Arse on this musa, and thereby achieve pryzicol scparation by
this protective belt und by adequate fencing, rather than by a separution of a
‘mile or two, A third method ef achleving the desired result is, of course, to

, move the entirs Main Technical Area from Los Alnmos Mesa to some cother location

(: or locations. Tkie pogsibility will be tskon tp in the next secvion.

V. Statup of the Laboruatory
A. Porponnol , '

The pergsonnel presently employed by tho Laboratory number about 1,500
and as 8 conservative estimate, were hcusing {'reely avoilable, this would probably
be increased to 2,000 or pcopibly 2,200, Essentially working for the Laboratory,
although nnt its employees, are the numerous junitors, laborers and workmen of
the verious maintenance and comstruction crafts, wbo are required to keep it in
running order. These poople pumber perhaps five or gix hurdred and rcquive pro-
visions in the xay of working quarters, offices, ghops, warehouse facilities,
etc, in or clesely adjacent to several of the tachnicul arcea. The futurs work-
ing force required by tho Labecratory, then, muy be set st sometbing like 2,500 to
3,000, barring contingencies such ac & major change by the AJE.C. of the basic

(f“ directives by the Laboratory, in which case this figure might be either halved

- or doubled ey the case might be., Allowing perhepc 300 =g9. ft. of overall work-

ing space por employee, this means that the Laboratory will requirs around
900,000 8q, ft. of floor spuace and with the eddition of wurehousing and atorage
facilities, this figure would probebly roach a million square feet of floor sracc.
The totel ground area set aside for technical purpogsos” will, of course, bs far
greater than this, bsceuse of the necessity for icolation of many oparationo
made hezardous by the use or production of high explosives, radioactive wastes,
etc. As we have aseen previously, something like twenty or twenty-five squure -
miles is presently set aside for this purpooe and some enlurpgement of the figuru
may be necossury olther duie to rearrsngement of existing facilities in relation
to one another, or tecauss of the construction of & numbsr of new technical aresg.

-

B. Details Concernlng Exipting Aroos
1. TA~L (Uain Technical Ares) |

a. Thig 25 acro ares ie the sest of nll the central functiono of
the Laboratory. Here are the Directer's offico, the variouc adminisntrative and

UN_QL_ASSI.F IE




— Umssxrltm

servioe groups, the central wurshousing, the technical shops, the prinecipal :
chemical and metallurgical laboratories, most of the experimental physics P
mactines and equipment, the headquarterc, ohops, and preparation luboratoriss I
of the zroups which operate the firing sites and other outlying technical -
aress, as well as the offices of the A.E.C., Security, Safety, Fire Protesction,
Accountable Property, end Communications personnel. !

b, As poted above, all its buildings will still be in use for the
next two to six years, while pow facilities cre being constructsd at South Mesa, j
and consideratle money will have t¢ be extendad for receonable maintenonce and :
minor construction, os woll ap for certain larger construction jebs admittedly
temporary in noture. The Sigms Building Addition will be the first of these.

2, Th-2 (Omega Site) , '

n. There is much to be said both for and agninst the present locn-
tion of Omepn Site. A yomr ago the nscessity of providing an icmedicio shelter
for the installetlion of a fast reactor Ly the Phyoics Division made necessary a
decleion as to whether or not it should bo located at TA-2, olready used for
thres years by the Division, Coniiderationp regarding tralned persomnsl, shop
equipmont and the like made the decision in the af'firmutive, in spite of the
foct that the oito was located in Los Alsmos Canyon directly bslow the occupied
Los Alamos Mesa and that u serious aceident would probably cause earth and nir
chock with consequent probable danger to structures on the Mesa, and would also
produco a cloud of radioactive emoke and dust which might encanger the inhnb-
itanto on the Meca. The physicists! calculations showed that the probability
of such accidents on toth counts was remcte enough that Dr. Bradbury decided to
gu aheud with the reactor shelter at TA-2. This in turn involved construction
of tvo other small permsnent buildings for guard querters and standby electric
power, 8o that approximately balf of tho site is now of permancnt construction
end the remainder could be mede go withcut too great an expenditure. Basically,
the question of whether the pite should remsin where it is, once the money spent
and decisions already mede have been discounted, ip that of whether or not the
instellationc there are still regarded es having a sufficient degreo of safety
by the phycleists to warrunt their retention in a epot co close to the main
community functions, '

hs One baoic problem which will have to bLe solvaed if Omeps Site
is to continue as 4 permsnent location is the problem of the stream which runs
through the eite from west to emst. Apparently the soil on which the main
building ic situated is of an extremely porous nature and the result has been
that the whole underside of the emstern half of ihe building is under more or
lesy continuous pressure from water which has secped through frem the stream.
Seme atiempt to meot this problem hes already been made by doopening the sircam
elightly anmd by toking nteps to waterproof the main basement of the ptructure.
It 1o basically n bad condition, however, arnd the enly solution may woll be to
provids either a large culvert all the way through the sits or to line the sides
and bottom of the strecam with concrete so that no secpage is possible. The
forwer solution lv preflerable in thet it would probebly run to little more ex-
penee end that it would sloo make possible a considerable extension of the
driveway urea which ls now somowhat cramped by the location of the stream.

3. TA-3 (South Mesa Site)

a, South Mesa Site is o grouping of temporzry frame atructures of
extremely light construction together with spome profabricated hutnents, several
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small magazines, a few lightly fabtricated test chambers and one concrote explo-
sives burning pit. Tho site was originally built for G Division and upon disso-
lution of this organization in 1945 was transforred to Group X-7 in the Explosives
Division. It hos alvays been used for the manufacture end testing of detonators,
this latter usually in such nuaburs as to amount to less than half a pound of
high explosive in any one firing. The entire site is scheduled for ckandonzcat
whonever the proposed psrmanent detonstor laboratory is completed on Two Hile
Mesa. The axisting facilities are esgentiolly useless for any further purpcse
other than porhaps temporary warehousing or something of that neture. The land
on and adjacent to the eite, however, is cleared and roletively level, and could
be used as a location for some large tochnical installation should ploanning sbtudios
phow that the avea wap desiratle for puch. A road through the aresc will have to
be retained in any event tc provide mccess to a. the 44 XV power line coming ln
from Albuquerque and b, the mast for exhaust gases for Omegs Site which is eched-
uled to bs built in the neur future on lower South lesa.

4o TA~4 (Alpba Site)

a. Alpha Site wap constructed as a test firing site for smell charges
by members of G Divielon in 1944. Upon the dispolution of G Division in 1945 it
was transforred to M Division and has continued to be uged for itc originsl pur-
pose. Tho maximun charges [ired there amouat tc 200 lbs. The bulldings are all
of ressonably light temporary construction, consisting of an undergrcund con-
trol building with periscops, a small work shed directly edjacent to the control
building, a butment used as @ trimming buildipg, threo small magozines and a dork
room. Dr. Froman has recently asked that the site be considored pormaneat, but
tlis should be studied in the light of the overell plan.

5. TA-5 (Bata Site)

o, Beta Site mss constructed as an adjunct to Alpha Site in 1944.
It was originully uced for slightly lerger charges than Alphe Site, rarnging up
to 600 pounds por shot. In tte spring of 1945 the plte was improved and a fir-
ing point was built mome 700 feet to tho eant just off the toe of the mesa, to
be used for charges up to one ton. Situsted at tho end of tho mese as it is,
the only vinible strusturos at the pite ars the control building, togethor with
& trimming building further back slong the roud and a medium-sized magazine.
The [iring site is 5till in use and hus three basic dieadvontages: &. the types
of experiments performed in the course of the firing have coused numerous forept
fires in the volley land on botl sides of the meea, whicb is very narrow at that
point, and in spite of numerous fire roads which have been cut through the foraest
to meet thioc contingency, recurrent fires still present a very awkward problem;
b, belng situnted on high ground, the air shock {rom the ohots travels directly
across the intervening 3/4 wile and cavoes aprreciable tremors at the DP Site
buildings; c. again, because of its being eitunted on Ligh ground, it is within
fragment range of the Sandis Canyon installotion and persons working there must
be notified to seek shelter whenever a shot is fired st Beta Site. From this
it can be seen that some advantages would cortainly accrue were the firing sctiv-
itios now carried on at the site to be relocated either to some wido expanse of
mesa land which could be cleared of brush and treese or else to 8 narrov canyon
which could likenise be clesred and whoge high valls would prevent tho eecape
of flying frapgments. If this were done, the activities presently carried on at
Alpha Site could conceivably be removed to the present location of Betu Site and
be more huppily accomodated thers. If the road is used to goin access to
Wortundad Canyon, both siteus will have to be oliminsted. In any event, the Beta
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Site locotion will require s complete rebullding somovhere before it muy be con~
siderod usoble ap @ permancnt facility.

6. TA~G (Twe Mile Mesa)

8, Tho Two Hile Uesa Laboratory arca has aerved several purposes |
during the pupt peveral years., It originally consisted of some rough field
ingtnllationo such as bunkers, togethor with a conirol building and shop.

Ordnonce Division personnel used 1t for miscellaneous test purroses, principally
in connection with handling and testing of high explosive. 1In Octobsr of 1944

a test suucer some 200' in diameter wes constructed to be the scale model of &
lake for the purpoee of trying recovery shots, So far as I know, the project wae
dropped about the time the saucer wus completed and it wap never used., In tho
6pring of 1945 the area vas used for the censctruction of a dotonutor tecting lab-
oratory consisting of one main building and several test structures, the latter
of concroto construction., A number of smrll mapazines have boen sinco added,

The lab building snd test. structure mzy certainly be considored permonent il active
ities with detcnators arc to continue at Two Kile Mewse. At the precent time a
compluote sot of plens has been proparcd by Black and Voeich for the construction
of o pormanont detonator laboratory and, so far as I knew, these planp are ready
for bids. In cace o permanent detonator laboratory is not built on Two Mile
Mesa, the ares would furnish us good a building cite for some other large tech-
nical inntallation mp would South lesa, agein being clecar of treec and relatively
1 Bvel .

7. TA-7 (Cozez Ranch Site)

a. Gomez Ranch Site wae constructed in 1944 for eome type of smnall
explosives experimants invelving radicactive woterial. It cousisted of a frama
structure of about 600 sq, [t. flocr area and two firing pits or stadin sbout 40!
in dismeter with earthen banks about 5' high surrounding them. Sc far ns I know,
it has not been used since the srring of 1945. It is a srmell inotallation and of
ne preat importance.

8. TA-8 (Anchor Sito West)

a. This sito mas establiched in the fall of 1943 for the Ordnance
Division, It ip built near what was formerly the residence aren of Anchor Raunch
which wap vacatod only e short time before construction work bepgan on the ner eite.
The control building with ite periscope tower, nachine shop, control roomp and
ationdont magozsincp are of concretec construction and arec located in an embunkment.
Belpg vet as they wore in s nmaturel drainape ares there have, of course, been
recurront troubles ofter storms with the catch bapin and culverts filling or be-
coning clogged, with the result thadt large quantities of vater ond mud werc wcshed
down into tho eite. This wan finally eliminated in 1946 by the construction of an
earth dam and diversion ditch just west of the site. This site 15 of psrmsnent
conptruction and non that the droinage ¢roubles have been oliminated, chould be
eericuusly coneldered as a permansnt locotion for some tochnical nctivity, pescibly
for o ruloceted Th-16 (S Sito). In the fall of 1045, it was turned over to the
Explooives Division end has since been used for various experimental work in con-
nection with the manufacture of certain types of high explosives.

9. Th-9 (Anchor Site Lapt)

a. Anchor Site East is & motley collection of tenporary ond semi-
permanont structures snd wes oripinally & sort of catchell for miscellaneous
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experiments in explosives macufacture, explosives test firing, and experimental
X-ray work. The main manufacturing and X-ray facilities are directly adjccent

to the Anchor Ranch rond and the test firing facilities are peveral hundred yards
to the east in the open meadow. One firing site which consisted of an under-
ground hexagonal steel-lined pit with a hoavy roof was oripinally used for re-
covery shots but wac abandoned in the spring of 1945 in favor of a .similar but
larger chamber ot TA-12 (L Sits), The other firing location, ccmmonly known ap
*far point," 4is ptil)l in service, but tho concrete ctructure constitutiog the
control room is now in dunger of failing from ropested shock and will shortly

be ebandoned. There is nothing et this site worthy of being considered permanent
conetruction and the aorea should be considered as avsilable for some other pur-
pops. If it is determinod that it shsll continue ss an explosives handlipg area,
the nev bulldings should certainly be locatod considerably lurther from +he main
road than is now the cage,

10. TA-1C (Bayo Canyon Site)

a. Buayo Canyon Sitb work was begun in Bayo Cunyon in Septomber,
1944 using two M4 tanks me mobile control rooms and personnel shelters during

. the firing. In the early spring of 1945 there were constructed: a. opecinl

buildings for the radicactive chemistry work necessury for the experiments and
b. a heavily bunkored control building, battery hcuse, moaguzine, and trimming
building to two firing points. In the late ppring of 1945 a secend firing areas
wus conotructod, aguln having & control building, a battery buildinp and two
firing polnts, Since that time severel other minor structures have bsen com-
pleted. The plte was originully constructed for G Division and wus turned

over, upon dissolution of the latter in the fall of 1945, to M Division in
conjunciion with a group of radio-chemists from CMR Divigion. The indications
arv that the type of experiment which has been done hore vill be continued in-
definitely as a standard part of the Laboratory work, and a permanoent experi-
mental area of roughly the present dimonsions and with the prepent facilitien

or improved equivalents will be necescary as far into the future ap we cen now
see. Because of the location of the present site near the eastern sections of
North Mesa ond Modlo tiesu, both of which will almost undoubtedly be seriously
consldered lor either community or Luborator; inctallationp, it would seem quite
posoible that Bayo Ceényon might not romain a suitable location for the present
typo of experimentation, involving se it does the firing of explosive chaorges up
to 600 peunds in gize ond the utilizpotion of extremely radioactive sources vhich
produce highly penotrating gamme rays. The generel desipn of the firing roints,
control buildingo and explosives handling facilities has proven penerally satip-
foctory und with pomo improvement can undcubtedly be used vherecver the site may
be reconotructed. The chomlstry building and attendent facilities have proven
vory unsutisfactory and et the prosent time are undergoing a complete racesipn
study by CMR Division perscnnel: rith some help expected on tho matier shortly
from Black and Veatch. It 1o exceedingly unlilely that any finsl design will
result from this atudy in less than eiphteen months to two yenrs because of the
ocomplex considerations iuvolved.

11. TA-11 (K Site)

s+ K Site was constructed in the winter of 1944-1945. It con-
stats of tvo heavy concrote bettloship-typo structuros, betveon the armored
nosep of whieh charges of high explosive up to 200 lbos. have boen fired, a
comblnution control and laboratory building hoavily bunkered, and a shop and
general purpooe building also heavily bunkered. Back elong the road leading
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2o tho eite a trimming building end s magasine were conctructed. Sinco then
e swall mupazine has been added at tho site end several other smell modificas
tions bhave been effected. The eite was originelly constructed fer G Divisien
and upon its dissolution in 1945 wss aseigned to P Division which has since
used it for betatron work. The eite is sufficiently isolsted to be used again :
for explouives work i€ necessary and is of such heavy conztructicn that with

minor modifications it may definitely be coacidered permunont. At the present ;
time its umo es what 1ls essentlelly a pure physics leboratory makez it sort of ‘
an odd ntopchild in the firing site area in which it is lovuted, and possibly

some consolderetion should be given to the housing of the betotron in eome

othor locatlion more ccnvenient to the generul operations of the Phyeice

Division,

12, TA=12 (L Site)

a. L Site wes constructed ia the eerly spring of 1945 for the
Explosives Divieion and consisted of a steol-lined hexagonul pit with a heavy
earth filled cover of bridge-like construction which wus used [er certain re-
covery experiments. An open section of the meca just esst of the pit was
used for sevoral montho as a more or less unimproved firing site for charges
up to 200 pounds, and in connsction with thie work a hutment was set up «o 8
work shop and two small megesines were inctalled, together with a emall AC
dlesel genorator set. The site was abandened by X Division in April, 1946
ond hes not been used since that time. It is our understanding that X Dive
igion has plane to reactivate the pite ond to construect thore permamnent
laboratory buildings of & size and nature yet to be determined, but presumably
in connection with some sort cf explosives testing or experiment. The loca-
tion of the site is all right for a perwanent installction for thic sort of
operation, provided the chargos fired are relatively small - esay, up to 100
pounds -~ and providod that the ares ie clearod of treec for s reesonnble radius
around the site. DBecuuse it is just scross the canyon from TA-15 (R Site), it
bas no porpibility of being used for the firing of large charges.

13. TA-13 (P Site) !

a. Thig site was censtructed in the eorly full of 1944, ond con-
olote of a frame control building protected by s timber barricade from the {ir-
ing ares some 600' tc the emst. At the firing eres are tvo concrete battlechip-
typo structures, ont of which has been altered to provide o heavy stcel blistaer
on one side. Those bulldings were used for X-ray work in connection with ox-
plosives oxperiments. The eite wns originully constructed for G Divioion -and,
upon disselution of the latter in the fall of 1945, was turned over tc¢ M Div-
ipion. It hao since been used for & voriety of miscellonoour experiments for
which no other site was quickly ovailebls, sad ac the result of xhich a fair
enount of radioactive contamination has been scattcred on the chell arss lead-
ing down into the canyon on the mortheast side of the firing area. The inton-
ticn now is to establish a working area for trailers und a hutment for certain
rwockup arrangements of the experimentnl equipment required for experimente with
highly radionctive gsources which are actually to be performed st some other
location., The site ie located on a broad but heavily forested mess and tho area
should be more thoroughly cleared of trees and undergrowth if the site io to be
uzed permanently for any purposo. It is elso Tairly close to S Site and if tho
latter beccomes a permancnt explosives manufocturing area snd expands furthor to
the east, F Sitc may woll tocome too clase for comfort and have to be obsndonod,
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' ‘ a. Q Site was constructed for X Division work in the fall of
1944, It has s number of small spscialized buildinge for close observat.ion
worl on emell explosive chargee including a closed chamber, an open chamber,

a szell vtadium with & central [liring point, and control buildings end roome
for the above, together with severol small magezlnes, trimaing buildings and
the like. Boosuse of a devistion from specifications, the elosed chanmber.
failed structurally after severel charges had been fired in it. It waus
buttressed vith stoel boamp, but has szen little furthor use. The open cham-
ber and the remuinder of the site aro still in uge. Locoted on the far sido

of a ridge parallel to the R Site road, the site location still pecmn acequate
for explasives experiments of the mapnitude now employed. All the bulldiags
are oithor temporary or unsultsbtlc and vill have to be cormpletely replaced for
permanent, occupuncy. Probadbly the simplest thing to do in this regard would

be to robuild the site a short distance east of the prosent location and then
eliminate the originul site vhen the new ono 1s occupied. On the other band,
it is concelvable that the work done at Q Site could readily be combined with
vork now done elserhere and & larger firing site with better central facilities
establisked for several types of experimentation, each of whicl involves the
firing of small cbarges. There are several jlaces on the land leeding to R Site
vhere this could be done, provided aguin that the heavy forest was cleared away
pufficiently to meko e good sized operating ares free from the danger of forest
fires.

15. TA=15 (R Site)

a. The {lrst instellntions at R Site were complotsed in October,
1944 and consisted of a central conirol building &nd leboratory with soveral
firing points, a trimming building, and a couple of hutments und smzll mega~
vines, Since thot time numerous additions have boen made, mostly various
tyros of barricede ot nov firing sites. The site was oripinally sssipned to
X Divieion lor the uce of Walter Koskl and vwap later trunaferred to 1! Div-
ieion, together with Mr, Foski'c group. Llate in 1946 general conversations
bstween this office, the Director's office snd the M Divislon people reculted
in a genorel sgrecment that R Slte be conzidered the permonent loccetion for
firing explosives experiments involving charges up to ac much as two tons.
Since thal “ime a series of smnll permanent firing control charbors and a
completoly new lurge scale firing site with an undorground timbor control
building have beon completed. A now cutting building 1s under construction
at the moment and a new permunent magezine is in the bends of W, C. Kruger
Co. for the making of contract drawings. Gencrelly gpeaking, the R Site nrea
ptill soeme to be an 1deal location for the purposes to which it 15 now being
put, and the Planning Group should seriously consider keeping it so. With
propor layout of facilities it i3 concoiveble that ac many as four or five
soperato firiop polote could be wotablished and used at the same time, worke
ing from a central service and magosine aree. Tvo bad feestures of the present
installation, whict ghould be romoved, are the two firing sites directly ad-
Jacent to the road leadinpg to the lurpe scale firing point recently completsd
at the casturn end of the mesa. With ap much ppace ap is availoble at R Site,
there in little excuee for tho pormenent in"Lnllation of firing pites direct-
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16, TA-16 (S Site) - .,

‘ @« S Site wae constructed eoarly in 1944 ond ccnsisted of eix

buildings including o stesm plont. Since then the site hus been under practi-
celly continuous uxpansion, more or less dlgnified and delincated under the i
titles 52 Expansion, S3 Expansion and S4 Expansion. In the course of these
progrescsive additions, the totel plant hes come to include come eighty build- )
ingo of various cizen and uses for sll typep of explosives manufacture, storago, '
treatment, and testing. Reprcttably, some 85% of the site is of temportry frame i
construction end ie completely unpuitable for use as a permanent explosives
manufeoturing plant. The area may be viewed both [averably and unfavorably.
Tho cleared expanse originully present bes proven sufficiently large for tbe
plant to grow to its present size vithout edditional forsst clearing. Snould
it remain in this locaticn and be expanded in tho future, a large smount of
such clearing would be necassary. On the unfeverable eide is the foct that
the site is within easy welking diestence of Stato Route #4 and represents o
tompting target for poscible pabotsurs, especlnlly sinco Magazine Areas A and
B are betweon the site and Route /4 and the prospective saboteur by breaking
into one of thezo locatione could secure rendy ammunition for destructive

(::y purpoeee, Also enmeshed in the problem is the question of whether such a
mejor explosives manufacturing installation should be kept here at Los Alamos

q at 811, This is & metter which must be cettlod at hipher levels und poesibly

Y

by the Commission lteelf,
17. Th=17 (X Site}

a. X Site censtruction wes reguosted early in the fnll of 1944
and wans to be used for expanslon of X-rsy work on explosives exyperiments thea
being carried on at Anchor Site Zast, The work was concelled sherily after
construction began and the site has not been used for any purpese since that
timo. It i¢ dublous if it can be used fer anytbingﬁ inasmuck a@s the nater
. line from the Pejarito water source west of the Anchor Ranch arem now passes

close by.

18. TA-18 (Pajarito Canyon Laboratory)

<::! a. This area wac developed during 1944 for G Division, three

firing pointe btelng established, one for small cherges of & few peundo esch 4n
the west wing of the cenyon, a second for charges of severzl hundred pounds
each in tho south wing, emd a third for testing charges up to two tonp in the
waot wing, A heavily bunkered leboratory was built at the junction of the
tvo canyons, and u trimming building and mageziae constructed buck alonp the
road towurd Anchor Rench. During 1945 =overal storage hutments, two magazines,
a carpénter shop, ond un underground buttery buillding were constructed in thoe
contral erea, and considerable nlterations were made in tho second firing
point, meking it suitable for the firing of cherges up to two tons in size.

‘ Use of the pite pacned to M Divicion in the foll of 1945. Early in 1946 a
26" x 40' pddition to the central laberatory building was constructed for
integrel pssembly work involving redicactive materisl. In the spring of 1947
the permanent Integral Assembly Building woe completed in the porthL wing of the
capyon and the area was ebendoned or a loeation for explosives experiment. Bo-
couso of the isolation of the pite it is idesl for integral sseembly work and I
feol it ohould continue to bo ussd for that purpose. A permanont loboretory
building should replaco the present one and the other temporary structuree be
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concisted of ton major structures togother »ith twenty-odd omaller once. Later

. UNeuecs FM

removed, The concrotc "bnttleuhips“ ond tho underpround structurer micht as .
well be left - scme use might be found for them. ﬁ

- 19. TA-19 (Eust Gate Laboratory) }

a. Thin exell site, cvonsisting of one frame laboratory building !
nnd a storage hutment, was constructed in the summar of 1944 for the use of '
Dr. Segre, vho needed an isoluted spot for exacting experimontal work on omell
solirces, Because of the rush in which the construction was carried out, the '
sifie wag located just eapt of the Project boundory, oo indeed was Post One, the
ecit pate to the Project. The past two yoars the site has been used only upon
ocuasion by the Physics Divielon. The disposition of it reguires no great
ruih, and it may well be that upon its demolition no roplucement i1l be re-
quired,

-

20, TA-20 (Sondia Canyon Site)

8., This explosives fiold test site wes built for G Divicion in
the spring of 1945, Installations consisted of a laboratory and control
building adjacent to & firing point for cherges up to 50 pounds, tso "Dumbo"
motal veosels for small reccvery shois, o emall mageszine, a trimming hutment,
and an underground pit with a metal mech cover (vhich failed alter the first
few ehoto) for larger recovery shots. 1Ir April & 22 mm gun setup, together with
8 second magorine and o small workshop, wap constructed in & eide canyon lo re-
place a similur setup previously installed in an arcored rcom on the south slde
of Bullding B in the Main Tecknicel Area. The site was asgipned to M Division
in tho fall of 1945 und oince then hus been used for 8 miscellony of experiments
rithoul muchk change in tho oripinal installstions. The canyon could be reached
by a proparly conotructed rced from ihe mesa lend to the west, and the necaspity
for uping the Route ¥4 aprresch thersby be obvisted. All the construction ip
tomporary in nsture and will have to be replaced if the site bacomes permanent.

2. TA-21 (DP Site)

6. This important sito wee concelved and buillt durinyg the spring
and sumner of 1945 for major chemicsl and metallurgical work. At thot time it

a concrete vault and several other mointenance und stercpge buildinpe were con-
structed., This site is the nearest thing to a pormanent working area now used
by the Laboratory, and with replacemont of several frame structures by fireproef
ones can be made completely so, Most of the plencipg work required vill be in
this category.

22, TA-22 (7D Site)

o, Thip site wac constiructed in the summor of 1945 for O Division
at a center for the handling of special assemblies, replacing V Site. It con-
slsted of two prefabricated stran stoel bulldings, two large {rame megasines
(unbarricaded) and one improved ranch building. The assembly work wns trans-
ferred from Los Alamor in 1946, and the site haos since been used by X Division
ac an additional storage arca for high explosives.

23. TA-23 (Nu Site)

a. Tris firing site was constructed in the epring of 1945 for
X Division, to relieve the crowded firing echedule at "far point," Anchor Site
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Eaot, Up to a short timo ago it wag used for cumera work but is now being re-
equipped for X-ray work, still in connectlion with high explosives experimonto.

The battlosbip-type concrete structure at the firing polnt may be considered
permanent, but the control building, magazine, and small leaboratory are not. 5
Tris aite could well take on greater importance, and is not badly loocated. Y
Decisions made regerding it will have to be in conjunction with those regard- ‘
ing the other firing sitos in the samo vicinity. X

a, This oite, dirsctly adjacent on the north to S Sito, was con-
ptructod in the fall of 1944 as a pervice ares for the ¥-ray examination of
high explusive chargen. A year later o large storagn nguvine wvas conotructed
pod general alterations and additions made to theo mein laboretory building end
the geveral hutments. On November 19, 1946, & fire allegedly resulting from
impropar wiring destroyed the center portion of the laberatory building. The
latter was subsequently repaired with considerable improvements during the
Bpring of 1947. All bulldings st the site are temporary and will oventuslly
have to be roplaced. Any decisions as to tho rebuilding of the area willl have
to be tied in with the plans for S Site.

25. TA-25 (V Site)

a. Thkis area, having two maip buildings, and now es sentially an
Antegral pexrt of S Site, was censtructed in 1944 for experimental work in cone
nection with special asuemblies. Whon this work wes traneferred to TD Site in
1945, the pite undervent extensive alterationp (delayed several weeks by a
fire ir a nemly constructed coction) tc fit it for S Site process work oo ex-
plosive chaorges. As is the cape with TA-24, its fate must be settlnd slong
with thot of S Site.

26. TA-26 (D Site)

a, D Site, constructed in the summer of 1946, concists only of
a ooncrete storsge vault bullt for CMR Division, plus a small sentry building
apd guard tower. Located about 300 yards from Post I, it has recently been
subjncted to criticism from the Security People, ond will probably be replaced
by & vault eloevhore, after which we should be able to turn it to scme pew
purpose, ag it 1s certainly psrmanent in nature.

R7. TA-27 (Gamon Site)

a, This ares was oripginally used for {ield testing of H. E.
asgomblios and was the third area ncted in the Pajarito Canyon construction.
In the fall of 1945 it wes considerably improved for the use of G Division in
test firing of two ton charges, ond rencnmed Camma Site. After being in use
for several months, a faulty explosion scattered unburned K. E. for o coansider-
able distance up and down the canyon, subsequent to which the areu was isolated
with protevtive fenocep and abandoned. A thorough spraying with oll followed by
burning would seem to be the only feamcible msthod of rondering thc orea pafle
for uge again.

28. TW-28 (UMagazino Aren A)

a. This site conoists of five permenent mapgazines constructed ae
part of tho S3 expansion on the ieolated mese directly mouth of S Site. If
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propoerly fenced and guarded, 1t could be & good permanent installotion, but it !
1s too closs to Route #4 for ocomfort. . N i

‘ 29. TA-29 (MNogazine Ares B) : ' Y
&, This area is an abandoned CCC Camp directly edjacent to the ]
wast rato of the Project at Route 44, in which two pormanent magazines were
constructed in 1944. Both are still used by S Site. The aroa can be roaochsd
; ‘ by anyonc who cares to cross or crawl through a cattle fence along Route #4.

It should be abandoned as soon as poszible rogardlens of the fate of S Site.
30. TA-30 {Electronics Test Area)
&, Thie small site consists cf a aingie hutment erected in the
epring of 1945 on the Anchor Ranch Road at tbe intersection with the Psjurito
Canyon Road. It is shortly to be removed, :

WV 31, TA-31 (East Recoiving Yara)

a. Thip aren was met up for use of the Navajc Van Lines in the
sumner of 1945 with the construction of a roofed receiving dock., Since then
four other buildings have been added [or general warehcuse and salvage work.
All are temporsry. Any plearing regarding this aren will of nacessity bave
to tie in with the overall plans developed for the Tech Procuremont Group
operations, '






